
 

OFFICIAL MINUTES – FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE – APRIL 10, 2024 – PAGE 1 

THE COSTA MESA FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE 
 

APRIL 10, 2024 
 6:00 P.M. – OFFICIAL MINUTES 

 
CALL TO ORDER by Chair Roberts at 6:03 P.M. 
ROLL CALL 

☒ = Present    ☐ = Absent 
Committee Member Liaisons and City Staff 
☐ Daniel Baume 
☒ Andy Campbell 

☒ Councilmember Arlis Reynolds  
☐ Councilmember Jeffrey Harlan 

☐ Edwin “Bo” Glover ☐ Councilmember Manuel Chavez 
☒ Emily McClain 
☒ Jennifer Thomas 

☒ Hank Castignetti, Orange County Model Engineers (OCME) 
☒ Kelly Brown, Parks & Community Services (PACS) Commission 

☒ Kohl Crecelius, Vice Chair ☒ Kelly Dalton, Fairview Park Administrator 
☒ Erik Roberts, Chair ☒ Alma Reyes, Deputy City Manager 
 ☒ Seung Yang, City Engineer 

☒ Laura Fautua, Executive Assistant  
☒ Brian Gruner, Parks and Community Services Director 

 
Committee Member McClain arrived at 6:17pm 
PACs Commissioner Brown arrived at 6:31pm 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Kim Hendricks: Presented information about the tarplant that grows in the vernal pool 
watershed and its benefits to wildlife and highlighted second Saturday restoration events. 
 
Lynn Redman: Submitted correspondence ahead of time. Spoke about the Vandersloot 
garden that is now an ICRE project and he is no longer allowed to enter. Wants to know more 
information about the management of the area. 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBER and LIAISON COMMENTS 
Committee Member Campbell: Responded to Mr. Redman and said he would love for the 
area to continue being restored. Noted past training program for the Fairview Park Alliance 
(FPA) to work in the wetlands area and suggested something similar be done for ICRE area. 
Welcomed Mr. Gruner and acknowledged Mr. Dalton and his management of the park. 
Explained to Mr. Gruner the origin and purpose of the committee. 
 
Vice Chair Crecelius: Gave chair and vice chair updates with City staff read aloud 
committee guidelines from the website. Posed the question of how well the committee is 
doing of addressing their scope and noted room for opportunity to be a helpful resource for 
Council and Parks and Community Services Commission. 
  
Committee Member Thomas: Spoke about resident from Nancy Lane is watering the park. 
Reported a recreation vehicle that was driving too fast. Showed photo of observation that 
since a trail at the park has been closed, a new trail has been made by park users. Noted 
standing water with algae in the park. 

https://www.costamesaca.gov/government/commissions-and-committees/fairview-park-steering-committee


 

OFFICIAL MINUTES – FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE – APRIL 10, 2024 – PAGE 2 

 
Chair Roberts: Highlighted the zoom speaker series Mr. Dalton shared with the committee 
and noted he intends to sign up. The zoom topic is conversations on coastal connections 
through a justice lens.  
 
OCME Liaison Castignetti: Asked for identification for a flower that has been growing in the 
east side. Reported on number of rides given in March and total for the year so far. Stated 
that the train rides generate interest in the nature of the park. Mentioned  an OCME spring 
meet event. 
 
Councilmember Reynolds: Highlighted successful efforts of protection for parks coincide 
with education and engagement programs. Mentioned on the next council agenda, there is 
an item regarding Fairview Park staffing. Encouraged committee to speak on the item if they 
support it. Noted city has been working on an e-bike ordinance that only addresses streets 
and sidewalks. Asked if parks should be included based on recent comments. Noted Talbert 
and Banning Ranch are also currently updating their master plans and suggested 
coordination between the 3 projects. 
 
Mr. Gruner: Introduced himself as the new Parks and Community Services Director. Noted 
he is taking in information and learning about the committee and department. Spoke about 
his background and experience in parks and community services. 
 
PACS Commissioner Brown: Gave PACS Commission updates regarding tree review and 
updates on how the city will handle digging/installation of the tree. 
 

1. MINUTES 
A. APPROVAL OF FEBRUARY 14, 2024 MEETING  

MOTION: To approve the February 14, 2024 minutes 
MOVE/SECOND: Committee member Campbell/Committee Member Thomas  
Ayes: Vice Chair Crecelius, Committee Member McClain, Committee Member 
Thomas, Chair Roberts, Committee Member Campbell 
Nays: None 
Abstains: None 
Absent: Committee member Baume and Committee member Glover 
Motion Carried:  5–0  

2. OLD BUSINESS 
A. STATUS OF FAIRVIEW PARK MASTER PLAN UPDATE 

Mr. Dalton Presented.  
 
Councilmember Reynolds mentioned lack of open space in Costa Mesa and the large 
demand for different activities at Fairview and maybe those activities can be dispersed 
between the 3 sites. Noted possibility for better positioning when applying for large 
grants if all 3 groups are coordinating. 
 
Chair Roberts noted that the committee relationship with the city is improving, 
including agenda prep. Stated that adding agenda items can take time due to city 
process, encouraged patience. Noted one possible future agenda item is including a 



 

OFFICIAL MINUTES – FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE – APRIL 10, 2024 – PAGE 3 

Talbert Park Liaison for the committee. Discussion about order of Committee and 
PACs meetings in June regarding Master Plan Update.  

 
Mr. Dalton responded that 2 out of 3 committee meetings have been completed, so 
this will be the last one. Staff wants other groups to be up to date before that final 
meeting without pushing the committee meeting with MIG until August. Hopes both 
groups go to both meetings to collaborate. 
 
Vice Chair Crecelius suggested Fairview Park committee members to share about 
their involvement in this project during meetings. Inquired about expectation updates. 
 
Mr. Dalton relayed that there is no draft of the presentation yet, but it will include 
graphic improvements from past master plan. Noted expertise of this consultant that 
will help to guide park management and recommendations. 
 
Chair Roberts highlighted the importance to understand the old master plan to 
understand the updates. 
 
Committee Member Campbell inquired about storm drain master plan and the conflicts 
with the Fairview Park master plan and how potential conflicts will be managed. 
 
Mr. Yang noted storm drain master plan is still in progress and there will be 
coordination with Fairview Park Administrator before the plan is finalized. 
 
Committee Member Campbell noted the vernal pools filling during this rain season 
and providing flood control. 
 
Mr. Dalton stated that master plan update will call for enhancing the southern corridor 
of the park and there is a lot of opportunity to enhance drainage and habitat. 
 
Chair Roberts encouraged more education about Fairview and the unique ecosystems 
to other public bodies. Noted past presentation by MIG was educational and requested 
future education presentation be recorded, so it can be sent to committee members 
and PACs not in attendance. 

 
Committee Member Campbell echoed Chair Roberts comments about presentation 
recordings.  

 
PACs Commissioner Brown asked what the goals of the future Master Plan update 
community workshop is and what does the consultant expect. 
 
Mr. Dalton responded that the expectations are still being worked on, but the objective 
is to share what’s been done, what’s been learned from the expert team and share 
emerging recommendations and get feedback. 



 

OFFICIAL MINUTES – FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE – APRIL 10, 2024 – PAGE 4 

PACs Commissioner Brown hopes for a larger demographics for meeting attendance 
and suggested giveaways or raffles for youth. 
 
Mr. Dalton expressed the channels used for outreach; signage, school district 
contacts, and social media. 

 
Mr. Gruner responded that it’s a good suggestion and they will consider it during 
programming. 
 
Chair Roberts suggested a more advanced notice for the community meetings. 
 
Committee Member McClain stressed the difficulties families with children to make it 
to the meetings due to homework, sports, and other activities. Suggested committee 
members go to the younger students, go to classes to present. 
 
PACs Commissioner Brown suggested it could also be used as an educational 
opportunity. 
 
Public Comment: 

 Kim Hendricks: Delighted with the consultant team for the project. 
 

Lynn Redman: Believes maintenance of projects, facilities, and invasive species at 
the park have been overlooked.  
 

3. NEW BUSINESS: 
A. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT UPDATE 

Mr. Dalton presented. 
Committee Member McClain asked for a color-coded calendar be available to the 
public of ongoing work and volunteer restoration opportunities. 
Mr. Gruner shared staff will work with the marketing department and social media 
department to ensure communication to public. 
Committee Member McClain suggested teens could volunteer to help advertise 
events. 
Vice Chair Crecelius seconded involvement of volunteers and youth at the park to 
educate the community and promote conservation and protection of the park. 
Committee Member Campbell inquired about phase descriptions, timeline, and with 
grant deadlines. Suggested a bar chart to communicate budgetary information. Noted 
mesa restoration project information is misleading.  
Mr. Dalton informed that descriptions are based on 2002 recommendations and 
geotechnical firm is working to understand what is possible regarding stabilization. 
Committee Member Campbell questioned if the problem is the bluff or the users.  
Mr. Dalton responded that its being approached as an integrated restoration project, 
and the engineering division and public works department will be involved in the 



 

OFFICIAL MINUTES – FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE – APRIL 10, 2024 – PAGE 5 

geotechnical engineering issues.. Noted that existing bluff slopes have abundant 
invasive species and there are opportunities for restoration. Noted that fencing has 
helped to decrease user defined trails. 
Committee Member Campbell asked if the scope of the RFP is already known. 
Mr. Dalton informed there is a working draft. 
Committee Member Campbell asked if there would be updates on specifics of the 
project and what the RFP includes. 
Mr. Dalton informed that part of the scope will be community outreach and meetings 
with the Committee and that by the implementation phase that outreach will have 
happened. 
Committee Member Campbell asked for a quarterly snapshot. 
Mr. Gruner responded that staff will look into providing something like that. 
 
Public Comments: 
Lynn Redman discussed a past project that is not considered under restoration. 
 

4. STAFF REPORTS  
A. PARK RANGER REPORT 

a. FEBRUARY 2024 
Mr. Gruner asked what kind of data the committee is interested to receive from  
the police reports. 
 
PACS Commissioner Brown stated that topic has been brought up in PACs. 
Noted past reports had a code for the citations that were made at the parks. 
Stated PACs have been requesting to go back to past style of reports. 
 
Chair Roberts noted a stabbing occurred at the park earlier this year, but no 
details were given that would be useful for those who live around the park. 
 
Committee Member Campbell noted no observed violations from HSS in 
February but asked if the fly field has been open due to the rain. Suggested 
dropping the “Total” column and adding the date to the table. 
 
Chair Roberts noted there is no report for March. Stated that information on 
other parks is not needed. 
 
Committee Member McClain asked who to address comments and 
suggestions to for the e-bike ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Reynolds responded that people can email her for the e-bike 
ordinance. Stated there will be a special meeting on April 17th for the Active 
Transportation Committee that will be reviewing the ordinance which will then 
lead to a recommendation to council. 
 
Committee Member McClain questioned if ordinance is city-wide. 
 
Councilmember Reynolds confirmed ordinance is a full municipal code update. 



 

OFFICIAL MINUTES – FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE – APRIL 10, 2024 – PAGE 6 

 
Committee Member Thomas noted she has been calling about motorcycles at 
the park, not e-bikes. 
 
Mr. Gruner responded that some citations have been given recently and there 
are internal discussions about better signage and other improvements. 
 
Mr. Dalton stated that Master Plan team is also discussing ideas about 
incorporating indigenous educational content in the area and that it will require 
conversations with the tribes. 
 
Mr. Gruner noted coordination with police department regarding reports. 
 
Public Comment: 
Kim Hendricks seconded with Committee Member Thomas about motorcycle 
activity. Shared someone has been posting on the Fairview Park Alliance 
Facebook page about the issue regarding the motorcycles. Noted South 
Talbert jumps are nearby and can be used for the same purpose. Mentioned 
she does not see citations being issued when rangers come out. 
 
Lynn Redman stated that motorcycles use the park as a shortcut and go 35-40 
miles per hour. Stated it could be a public safety issue. 
 

B. ADMINISTRATOR’S UPDATE 
Mr. Dalton presented update.  
 
Committee Member Campbell mentioned seeing maintenance staff blowing leaves into the 
restoration areas. Asked if maintenance staff could be asked to vacuum up the leaves instead. 
 
Mr. Gruner noted staff will see if that can be done differently. 
 
PACs Commissioner Brown expressed excitement about the educational material at the park. 
Suggested it to be incorporated into the city social media. Suggested a birds of Fairview Park 
monthly post. 

 
5. ADDITIONAL COMMITTEE MEMBER & STAFF COMMENTS 

Committee Member Thomas highlighted the new park educational material and suggested a 
Fairview Park IG account. 
 
Committee Member Campbell would like to see an indigenous group presentation to the 
committee for educational purposes. Observed that the trail that was closed due to flooding 
led to the creation of another trail. Suggested those alternate trails or a boardwalk be 
considered in the master plan update. Stated that the existing boardwalk is very overgrown 
with mustard and other invasives. 
 
Committee Member McClain suggested for the committee to attend PACs meetings and 
announced May 9th meeting and April 16th city council meeting. Asked if trains will be run on 
May 18th (Love Costa Mesa Day) and if there will be a Fairview Park project. 
 



 

OFFICIAL MINUTES – FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE – APRIL 10, 2024 – PAGE 7 

OCME Liaison Castignetti: Welcomed Mr. Gruner and congratulated Mr. Dalton for the 
leadership award. 
 
Councilmember Reynolds: Noted council strategic planning retreat on April 19th and April 
23rd council study session on CIP. 
 

6. ADJOURNMENT by Chair Roberts at 8:25pm 
 
NEXT REGULAR FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE MEETING: THURSDAY, 
June 20, 2024 at 6:00 P.M. 


	THE COSTA MESA FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE

